CAMPBELLTOWN CITY COUNCIL

Minutes Summary

Ordinary Council Meeting held at 6:30 pm on Tuesday, 12 April 2022.

ITEM	TITLE	AGE
1.	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LAND	3
2.	APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE	3
3.	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	3
3.1	Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held 8 March 2022	3
4.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST Pecuniary Interests Non Pecuniary – Significant Interests Non Pecuniary – Less than Significant Interests Other Disclosures	4
5 .	MAYORAL MINUTE	4
5.1	Thoughts and Reflections	4
5.2	Paying tribute to Paul Hawker	4
6.	PETITIONS	4
7 .	CORRESPONDENCE	5
	Nil	
8.	REPORTS FROM OFFICERS	5
8.1	Outcome of Public Exhibition - Draft Amendment to the Campbelltown (Sustainable City) Development Control Plan 2015 - Koala Sympathetic Development	5
Meetir	ng note: Ms Patricia Durman and Mr Barry Durman addressed the meeting.	5
8.2	Outcome of Public Exhibition - Mount Gilead Development Control Plan	5
Meetii	ng note: Ms Sue Gay, Ms Patricia Durman, Mr Barry Durman and Mr Brendan O'Brien addressed the meeting.	5
8.3	Outcome of Public Exhibition and Public Hearing - Reclassification of Land at Campbelltown Sportsground Planning Proposal	6
8.4	Outcome of Public Exhibition - Evelyn Street, Macquarie Fields Planning Proposal	7
Meetir	ng note: Ms Sue Mossman and Mr Michael Hanson addressed the meeting.	7

8.5	Outcome of Public Exhibition - Signage as Exempt Development Planning Proposal	7		
8.6	Submission on A New Approach to Rezonings Discussion Paper	8		
8.7	Development Application Status			
8.8	Revised Asset Management Policy	8		
8.9	Investments and Revenue Report - February 2022			
8.10	Disclosure of Interest Returns 2021-22	9		
8.11	Reports and Letters Requested	9		
8.12	Licence on Community Land	9		
8.13	Campbelltown City Council Collection - New Acquisitions	10		
8.14	Submission on the Draft Western Parkland City Blueprint and Economic Development Roadmap (Phase 1)	10		
9.	QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE	10		
	Nil			
10.	RESCISSION MOTION	10		
10.	RESCISSION MOTION Nil	10		
10. 11.		10		
	Nil			
11.	NOTICE OF MOTION	11		
11. 11.1	NOTICE OF MOTION Women's Shed	11		
11. 11.1 11.2	NOTICE OF MOTION Women's Shed Scenic Hills Walking / Cycling Trail	11 11 11		

Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of the Campbelltown City Council held on 12 April 2022

Present The Mayor, Councillor G Greiss

Councillor G Brticevic
Councillor J Chew
Councillor M Chivers
Councillor M Chowdhury
Councillor J Cotter
Councillor M George
Councillor K Hunt
Councillor M Khalil
Councillor D Lound
Councillor R Manoto
Councillor W Morrison
Councillor R Munro
Councillor M Oates
Councillor M Stellino

1. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LAND

An Acknowledgement of Land was presented by the Chairperson Councillor Greiss.

Council Prayer

The Council Prayer was presented by the General Manager.

2. APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Nil

3. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

3.1 Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held 8 March 2022

It was **Moved** Councillor Brticevic, **Seconded** Councillor Munro:

That the Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held 8 March 2022, copies of which have been circulated to each Councillor, be taken as read and confirmed.

059/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Declarations of Interest were made in respect of the following items:

Pecuniary Interests

Nil

Non Pecuniary - Significant Interests

Nil

Non Pecuniary - Less than Significant Interests

Nil

Other Disclosures

Nil

5. MAYORAL MINUTE

5.1 Thoughts and Reflections

It was **Moved** Councillor Greiss:

That the information be noted.

060/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

5.2 Paying tribute to Paul Hawker

It was **Moved** Councillor Greiss:

That the information be noted.

061/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

Meeting note: The Chamber observed one minute of silence in memory of former Campbelltown Mayor and Councillor, Paul Hawker.

6. PETITIONS

7. CORRESPONDENCE

Nil

8. REPORTS FROM OFFICERS

8.1 Outcome of Public Exhibition - Draft Amendment to the Campbelltown (Sustainable City) Development Control Plan 2015 - Koala Sympathetic Development

Meeting note: Ms Patricia Durman and Mr Barry Durman addressed the meeting.

It was **Moved** Councillor Hunt, **Seconded** Councillor Chowdhury:

- 1. That Council adopt the Amendment to the Campbelltown (Sustainable City) Development Control Plan 2015 shown at attachment 1.
- 2. That upon Council's adoption, the amendment be published on Council's website and take effect from the date of publication.
- 3. That Save Sydney Koalas be advised of Council's decision and the changes made in response to their submission.

A Division was recorded in regard to the Resolution for Item 8.1 with those voting for the Motion being Councillors G Greiss, D Lound, K Hunt, M Chowdhury, R Manoto, M Oates, W Morrison, M Khalil, M Stellino, J Cotter, G Brticevic, M Chivers, M George, J Chew and R Munro.

Voting against the Resolution were Nil.

062/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.2 Outcome of Public Exhibition - Mount Gilead Development Control Plan

Meeting note: Ms Sue Gay, Ms Patricia Durman, Mr Barry Durman and Mr Brendan O'Brien addressed the meeting.

It was **Moved** Councillor Brticevic, **Seconded** Councillor Khalil:

- 1. That Council adopt the Campbelltown (Sustainable City) Development Control Plan 2015, Volume 2 Part 7 Mt Gilead as amended in attachment 1, relating to land within the Mt Gilead Urban Release Area.
- 2. That upon Council's adoption, Volume 2 Part 7 Mt Gilead Development Control Plan as amended be published on Council's website and take effect from the date of publication.

3. That the submission authors be advised of Council's decision.

A Division was recorded in regard to the Resolution for Item 8.2 with those voting for the Motion being Councillors G Greiss, D Lound, K Hunt, M Chowdhury, R Manoto, M Oates, W Morrison, M Khalil, J Cotter, G Brticevic, M Chivers, M George, J Chew and R Munro.

Voting against the Resolution were Councillor M Stellino.

063/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

Meeting note: Additional documents supplied by Brendan O'Brien on behalf of Lendlease and Patricia and Barry Durman and were tabled at the meeting.

Procedural Motion

It was **Moved** Councillor Brticevic, **Seconded** Councillor Greiss:

That Item 8.4 Outcome of Public Exhibition - Evelyn Street, Macquarie Fields Planning Proposal be brought forward to be considered after Item 8.2 Outcome of Public Exhibition - Mount Gilead Development Control Plan.

064/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.3 Outcome of Public Exhibition and Public Hearing - Reclassification of Land at Campbelltown Sportsground Planning Proposal

It was **Moved** Councillor Brticevic, **Seconded** Councillor Khalil:

- 1. That Council forward the Planning Proposal to reclassify land at Campbelltown Sportsground at attachment 1 to this report to the Minister for Planning and Public Spaces and request that the Planning Proposal be made.
- 2. That all those who made a formal submission on this Planning Proposal, be notified of Council's decision.

A Division was recorded in regard to the Resolution for Item 8.3 with those voting for the Motion being Councillors G Greiss, D Lound, K Hunt, M Chowdhury, R Manoto, M Oates, W Morrison, M Khalil, M Stellino, J Cotter, G Brticevic, M Chivers, M George, J Chew and R Munro.

Voting against the Resolution were Nil.

065/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.4 Outcome of Public Exhibition - Evelyn Street, Macquarie Fields Planning Proposal

Meeting note: Ms Sue Mossman and Mr Michael Hanson addressed the meeting.

It was **Moved** Councillor Lound, **Seconded** Councillor Hunt:

- 1. That Council adopt the Planning Proposal at attachment 1, for the Evelyn Street Fringe (Macquarie Fields) with the following post exhibition amendments:
 - a. Rezone only part of the Evelyn Street fringe from E4 (C4) Environmental Living to R2 Low Density Residential. Future proposed lot numbers, 21 and 22 to remain zoned C4 Environmental Living.
 - b. Apply a minimum lot size of 1 ha to the "residue" E4 (C4) Environmental Living zone land, aligning with proposed lots 21, 22 and 15.
 - c. Apply a minimum lot size of 1 ha for dual occupancy on the "residue" E4 (C4) Environmental Living Zone land in the plan area aligning with proposed lots 21, 22 and 15.
 - d. Revert back to the existing 2 ha minimum lot size for land aligning with proposed lots 23, 24, 25 and 26.
- 2. That subject to recommendation 1, Council forward the Planning Proposal to the Department of Planning and Environment and request the Minister for Planning and Homes finalise the plan.
- 3. That the persons and agencies responsible for submissions be thanked for their submissions and be advised of Council's decision.
- 4. That the applicant and owners be advised of Council's decision.

A Division was recorded in regard to the Resolution for Item 8.4 with those voting for the Motion being Councillors G Greiss, D Lound, K Hunt, M Chowdhury, R Manoto, M Oates, W Morrison, M Khalil, J Cotter, M George, J Chew and R Munro.

Voting against the Resolution were Councillors M Stellino, G Brticevic and M Chivers.

066/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.5 Outcome of Public Exhibition - Signage as Exempt Development Planning Proposal

It was **Moved** Councillor Morrison, **Seconded** Councillor Chew:

1. That Council adopt the subject Planning Proposal (attachment 1) to permit certain types of signage as exempt development on bus stop shelters and Council sporting fields.

- 2. That subject to recommendation 1, Council exercise its plan making function, via the General Manager being the functions of the Minister for Planning under section 3.36(2) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, pursuant to the Instrument of Delegation dated 14 October 2012.
- 3. That the State agency submitters be advised of Council's decision.

A Division was recorded in regard to the Resolution for Item 8.5 with those voting for the Motion being Councillors G Greiss, D Lound, K Hunt, M Chowdhury, R Manoto, M Oates, W Morrison, M Khalil, M Stellino, J Cotter, G Brticevic, M Chivers, M George, J Chew and R Munro.

Voting against the Resolution were Nil.

067/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.6 Submission on A New Approach to Rezonings Discussion Paper

It was **Moved** Councillor Brticevic, **Seconded** Councillor Morrison:

That Council endorse the submission on A New Approach to Rezonings discussion paper as provided in attachment 1 and forward the submission to both the NSW Department of Planning and Environment and The Honourable Anthony Roberts MP, Minister for Planning and Minister for Homes.

068/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED**.

8.7 Development Application Status

It was **Moved** Councillor Morrison, **Seconded** Councillor Khalil:

That the information be noted.

069/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED**.

8.8 Revised Asset Management Policy

It was **Moved** Councillor Chew, **Seconded** Councillor Morrison:

- 1. That the revised Asset Management Policy as attached to this report be adopted.
- 2. That the Asset Management Policy review date be set at 30 June 2024.

070/2022

The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.9 Investments and Revenue Report - February 2022

It was **Moved** Councillor Munro, **Seconded** Councillor Chowdhury:

That the information be noted.

071/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED**.

8.10 Disclosure of Interest Returns 2021-22

It was **Moved** Councillor Brticevic, **Seconded** Councillor Munro:

That the information be noted.

072/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.11 Reports and Letters Requested

It was **Moved** Councillor Munro, **Seconded** Councillor Cotter:

That the comments and updates to the reports and letters requested be noted.

073/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.12 Licence on Community Land

It was **Moved** Councillor Morrison, **Seconded** Councillor Khalil:

That Council approve the following in relation to the creation of a proposed new Telecommunications Facility at Jaycees Reserve, 22 Hume Street, Campbelltown:

- 1. That Council endorse an EOI for tender for the Licence of a Telecommunications Facility on Community Land.
- 2. That Council approve a public consultation process is undertaken in relation to Licensing on Community Land under the terms of the *Local Government Act 1993* and if required that Ministerial approval is sought to proceed with the Licence.

- 3. That Council endorse that the terms set out in the successful tender submission form the basis for the Licence between parties.
- 4. That Council endorse the Licence Agreement is executed by way of delegated authority under Section 377 of the *Local Government Act* 1993.

074/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.13 Campbelltown City Council Collection - New Acquisitions

It was **Moved** Councillor Munro, **Seconded** Councillor Chivers:

That Council accept the following proposed donations for acquisition as a part of the Campbelltown City Council collection:

- direct donation by Helene Buckman 'Morning mist at Tumit' by Ted Lewis
- donations by Michelle Cawthorn 'Sprinkler on a hot summer's day' 2019 and 'The Bubbler Jackpot' 2018 as a proposed donation through the Cultural Gifts Program.

075/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

8.14 Submission on the Draft Western Parkland City Blueprint and Economic Development Roadmap (Phase 1)

It was **Moved** Councillor Manoto, **Seconded** Councillor Chowdhury:

That Council endorse the attached submission on the draft Western Parkland City Blueprint and Economic Development Roadmap (Phase 1).

076/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

9. QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE

Nil

10. RESCISSION MOTION

Nil

11. NOTICE OF MOTION

11.1 Women's Shed

It was Moved Councillor Oates, Seconded Councillor Chivers:

That Council present a report on the feasibility of developing a Women's Shed Pilot Program to complement Council's focus on community resilience and sustainability.

077/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

11.2 Scenic Hills Walking / Cycling Trail

It was **Moved** Councillor Oates, **Seconded** Councillor Manoto:

That Council officers provide a briefing to Councillors on the potential to create a Scenic Hills Walking / Cycling Trail to connect Campbelltown's Scenic Hills to the existing walking/ cycling networks in the adjacent Western Sydney Parklands.

078/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED.**

11.3 Cost of Living Assistance for Local Residents

It was **Moved** Councillor Lound, **Seconded** Councillor Hunt:

That Council:

- 1. Notes that local residents are facing significant pressures in terms of the rising cost of living.
- 2. Further notes that household budgets are under significant strain, with real wages going backwards compared to inflation.
- 3. Investigates these issues and provide a report to Council on:
 - a. What steps Council is presently taking to mitigate pressures on local residents and ratepayers.
 - b. Further actions that Council can take to assist ratepayers in dealing with the rising cost of living.

An Amendment was Moved Councillor Brticevic, Seconded Councillor Chivers:

- 1. That Council officers provide a briefing and a report to Councillors on the Rate Assistance and Hardship Policy.
- 2. That Council officers provide a briefing and a report to Councillors on the Resilience Hazard Assessment.
- 3. That Council write to the Member for Macarthur, Dr Mike Freelander MP, Member for Werriwa, Anne Stanley MP and any candidates for the Federal election seeking their policies on improving the lives of the residents in the Campbelltown LGA.

The Amendment was Carried and became the Motion.

079/2022 The Motion on being Put was **CARRIED**.

It was **Moved** Councillor Brticevic, **Seconded** Councillor Chivers:

That a Division be recorded in regard to the Resolution for Item 11.3 with those voting for the Motion being Councillors G Greiss, D Lound, K Hunt, M Chowdhury, R Manoto, M Oates, W Morrison, M Khalil, M Stellino, J Cotter, G Brticevic, M Chivers, M George, J Chew and R Munro.

Voting against the Resolution were Nil.

12. URGENT GENERAL BUSINESS

13. PRESENTATIONS BY COUNCILLORS

- Councillor Karen Hunt on 4 April with the Mayor, Councillor Greiss and Councillor Chowdhury attended Campbelltown Arts Centre for the opening of the exhibition 'Portraits of a Resilient Campbelltown'. The exhibition is a display of 10 portraits, painted by local resident Emmanuel Asante, that captured some of Campbelltown's most resilient community members.
- 2. Councillor Karen Hunt on 11 March attended the Ingham Institute International Women's Day Luncheon at West Leagues Club. The guest speaker was Associate Professor Suzanne Hodgkinson who leads the Immune Tolerance research group which is working on new treatments and therapies for Autoimmune diseases. The day was a great celebration of the achievements of women.

- 3. Councillor Karen Hunt on 12 March attended the Macarthur Bulls vs Western Sydney Wanderers soccer game at Campbelltown Stadium. There were large numbers of supporters in attendance, although Councillor Hunt noticed the Wanderers fans becoming quieter as the match progressed as the Macarthur Bulls walked away with a 3-1 victory over the Wanderers.
- 4. Councillor Karen Hunt on 10 April with Councillor Lound and Councillor Chowdhury attended the Australian Muslim Welfare Centre Inc. Annual Ifter Ramadan Dinner. Councillor Hunt spoke about how welcoming and gracious the community was and was pleased to be able to partake in this dinner.
- 5. Councillor Masood Chowdhury wished the Chamber a Happy Holy Ramadan, Aahalan WaSahalan Ramadan Kareem, Ramadan Moubark as those of Islamic faith all over the world fast from dawn until sunset.
- 6. Councillor Masood Chowdhury on 8 April was delighted to attend Macquarie Fields High School Ifter Dinner in the school auditorium. The dinner was organised by the students and parents. Councillor Chowdhury thanked the students and parents for organising such a great event every year in Ramadan.
- 7. Councillor Masood Chowdhury on 25 March attended the Lifeline Macarthur and Western Sydney 2022 Annual Dinner fundraising event at Ottimo House. Lifeline Macarthur and Western Sydney provide 24/7 crisis support and aim to empower and support individuals to be 'suicide safe'. Councillor Chowdhury encouraged anyone needing support to call Lifeline on 13 11 14.
- 8. Councillor Masood Chowdhury on 9 April attended Sydney Nepal Himalaya Lions Club fundraising event. The fundraiser was to raise funds for the NSW and QLD flood victims. The event featured legendary Nepalese comedian Mr Rajaram Poudyal.
- 9. Councillor Rey Manoto on 31 March attended the Georges Riverkeeper AGM. Councillor Manoto was pleased to share that Councillor Stellino was appointed Vice Chair, Councillor Banasik (from Wollondilly Shire Council) was appointed Chair and Councillor Manoto was humbled to be reappointed as the Treasurer. Councillor Manoto advised that Georges Riverkeeper has now partnered with Sydney Water as a member organisation and Councillor Manoto shared his excitement regarding the new partnership.
- 10. Councillor Rey Manoto on 9 April attended the opening on the Campbelltown Community Recycling Centre. Councillor Manoto expressed his excitement that the centre has opened and the community has a facility to easily dispose and recycle household waste that don't belong in the yellow recycling bins such as oils, paints and batteries.
- 11. Councillor Rey Manoto on 7 April attended the induction ceremony of 25th year of the Sto. Nino Association of Campbelltown and Macarthur. It celebrated the devotion of Santo Nino, where the first holy icon of an infant Jesus was installed in the Philippines in the year 1521.
- 12. Councillor Meg Oates on 9 March as part of the celebrations for International Women's Day attended HJ Daley Library for the presentation 'Women of Macarthur Stories of the Past'. The presentation, by the local history team outlined the lives of 5 women (Elizabeth Hume, Giribunger Nanny Barrett, Rose Payten, Genevieve Tregear and Kathleen Whitten) who have been part of the story and fabric of the Macarthur area. These women, were often

- overlooked when the history of the region is recorded, and the presentation provided an insight into their struggles, successes and aspirations. Councillor Oates thanked the library and history teams for their efforts in ensuring these stories continue to be told.
- 13. Councillor Meg Oates attended Campbelltown Arts Centre and participated in the 'Down to Earth' clay making workshop which was run as part of the International Women's Day celebrations. The workshop was a wonderful opportunity to work with clay.
- 14. Councillor Meg Oates on 10 April attended the Handmade and Homegrown Markets. Councillor Oates shared her excitement to have a place where the community can come together and shared with the Chamber the positive feedback she received from stallholders, noting that some stallholders attended the second markets after hearing great feedback from the first market.
- 15. Councillor Meg Oates celebrated seniors week attending Glenquarie Library on 28 March to participate in the Germination and Propagation workshop. The workshop was run by the Natural Areas and Open Space Team of Council and educated attendees in sustainable plants, seed bombs and growing cuttings. Councillor Oates thanked the staff for sharing their knowledge and all attendees left with new skills to take back to their gardens.
- 16. Councillor Meg Oates attended the opening of the Community Recycling Centre in Hepher Road, Campbelltown. Councillor Oates noted the positive impact it will have on the environment, as it now provides residents with a local and easier option to recycle more unusual items such as paint tins, televisions and gas bottles.
- 17. Councillor Meg Oates attended the opening of the 'Macarthur & Beyond' art exhibition at Campbelltown Arts Centre. Councillor Oates shared her excitement to attended her first opening in a number of years due to COVID-19 lockdowns. 'Macarthur & Beyond' is a collective exhibition featuring works from: Maryanne Wick A Sense of Place & Time; Macarthur Ceramics Group Dust to Table; Yirran Miigaydhu Weaving Ways to Country and Friends Annual & Focus. Councillor Oates encouraged the community to visit the exhibition as it reflects who Campbelltown really is.
- 18. Councillor Warren Morrison echoed the words from Councillor Greiss in also thanking the City Delivery and City Works teams for their assistance to the community during the floods. Councillor Morrison acknowledged the efforts of the teams to promptly work to repair the roads and potholes caused after all the rain. Councillor Morrison thanked all the local volunteers, SES volunteers, police and firefighters for their assistance in the community.
- 19. Councillor Warren Morrison on 5 February attended the Little Athletics Regional Championships at Campbelltown Athletics Stadium. Councillor Morrison congratulated all athletes for their achievement in making to region and congratulated all the athletes on their performances passing on his best wished for those that qualified for the State Championships.
- 20. Councillor Morrison shared the amazing achievements of the local Wooldridge family who have all represented Australia in sport. Councillor Morrison shared every major achievement of the family in particular noting their accomplishments in triathlons. Councillor Morrison wished the family continued success as they continue to succeed and represent Australia in the sporting world.

- 21. Councillor Warren Morrison on 4 April attended Campbelltown Arts Centre to view the exhibition 'Portraits of a Resilient Campbelltown'. Councillor Morrison shared that Mal Fruean, the Chairperson for the NSW Council for Pacific Communities had his portrait on display in the exhibition and Councillor Morrison passed on his appreciation to Mal for his support and work in the community.
- 22. Councillor Warren Morrison on 7 April attended Hurlstone Agricultural High School for their ANZAC Day Ceremony. Councillor Morrison congratulated the school's orchestra on their outstanding performance and thanked the principal and school captains for their hospitality.
- 23. Councillor Josh Cotter on 20 March attended the Harmony Day Celebrations at Oz Funland. Councillor Cotter thanked Brian and Christerine Laul who are always supporting the community and hosting this event. The celebrations were filled with performances, sharing food and stories.
- 24. Councillor Josh Cotter on 31 March attended the open day of St Peter's Anglican Grammar and St Peter's Heart. St Peters Anglican Grammar has been rebranded into a senior school which will cater from Pre-kindy to Year 12. St Peter's Heart is a new specialist school catering for students with mild to moderate autism and/or intellectual disability and provides more opportunities for families in the area. Councillor Cotter spoke to families who shared how appreciative they are to have the school. Councillor Cotter spoke to staff who shared that their aim is to provide an inclusive and supportive environment.
- 25. Councillor Josh Cotter on 31 March attended St Peter's Church for Paul Hawkers funeral. Councillor Cotter noted that the funeral was a celebration of Paul's life and highlighted his willingness to assist the community and serve the residents of the Campbelltown LGA.
- 26. Councillor Josh Cotter on 10 April attended the Handmade and Homegrown Markets in Lithgow St, Campbelltown. Councillor Cotter expressed how wonderful it was to have some sun and see the community out and about with lots of stallholders and live music. Councillor Cotter encouraged the community to come down to the next market day in May.
- 27. Councillor George Brticevic on 9 April attended the opening of the Community Recycling Centre. The recycling centre accepts car and household batteries, lights, paint tins and electronic waste. In attendance was the 2022 Environmental Citizen of the Year recipient, Alexis Bowen the driving force behind The Bin Chicken which encourages the community to reduce the amount of waste produced that ends up in our red bins.
- 28. Councillor George Brticevic on 10 April attended the Handmade and Homegrown Markets in Campbelltown. Councillor Brticevic passed on his congratulations to Councillor Oates as the markets were a suggestion raised through a Notice of Motion submitted by Councillor Oates in the Chamber last term. Councillor Brticevic thanked the staff for organising the series of markets as they appear to be very well received in the community and he looks forward to the next market in May.
- 29. Councillor George Brticevic passed on his thanks to Natalie Viset from the Communications Team who has just resigned from Council. Natalie was responsible for helping all Council staff with their social media posts and her assistance was appreciated. Councillor Brticevic wished Natalie all the best in her next endeavour.

- 30. Councillor Margaret Chivers attended Campbelltown Arts Centre for the opening of the exhibition 'Portraits of a Resilient Campbelltown'. One of the portraits on display was of local Ricardo Lonza who is best known in the community for the tireless work he dedicates to caring for the koalas. Councillor Chivers praised the efforts of Ricardo in the community as he is a true example of resilience in Campbelltown. Ricardo is also a true supporter of small business in Campbelltown and he administers a community facebook page to encourage support for these local businesses. Ricardo works with the children at Passfield Park School, runs his own small business and turns up to Council meetings to show his support for items put to Council to consider. Councillor Chivers thanked Ricardo for his dedication, knowledge and support he provides the residents in the Campbelltown region, acknowledging that Ricardo is truly an example of resilience.
- 31. Councillor Chivers passed on her thanks to the staff member, Yathugiri Logathassan, Acting Program Manager, Western Sydney Health Alliance who at the last minute stepped up to emcee the opening of the exhibition 'Portraits of a Resilient Campbelltown' and did an amazing job.
- 32. Councillor Marian George on 11 March attended the Ingham Institute International Women's Day Luncheon. Councillor George appreciated the opportunity as a new Councillor to get to know other Councillors and staff who were in attendance a little better.
- 33. Councillor Marian George on 19 March attended the St Patrick's College Emerald Gala Ball. The Gala Ball was a fundraiser for the Scholarship Fund which is provides financial scholarships to local families enabling their daughters to attend the school. Councillor George recalled a story shared on the night of former scholarship recipient, and how the scholarship assisted her to complete her schooling at St Patrick's and how due to changing circumstances her family has donated another scholarship to enable future students to have the same opportunities.
- 34. Councillor George Greiss wished all residents Happy Easter, Happy Ramadan, Happy Passover and acknowledged the contributions of soldiers past and present for their sacrifices as the community observes ANZAC Day.

There being no further business the meeting closed	at 9:31 pm .	
Confirmed by Council		
General Manager		Chairperson